
 

 

  

 

 

City of Pleasant Ridge 

23925 Woodward Avenue 

Pleasant Ridge, Michigan 48069 

 

City Commission Meeting 

November 12, 2019 

 
 
 
Honorable Mayor, City Commissioners and Residents: This shall serve as your official notification of the 
Public Hearing and Regular City Commission Meeting to be held Tuesday, November 12, 2019, 7:30 P.M., in 
the City Commission Chambers, 23925 Woodward Avenue, Pleasant Ridge, Michigan 48069.  The following 
items are on the Agenda for your consideration: 

 
PUBLIC HEARING AND REGULAR MEETING–7:30 P.M.  
1. Meeting Called to Order. 
 
2.  Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
3. Roll Call. 
 
4. PUBLIC DISCUSSION – items not on the Agenda. 
 
5. Presentation by Ferndale Public Schools Superintendent Dania Bazzi. 
 
6. Request by Whistle Stop I, LLC, 24060 Woodward Avenue, Pleasant Ridge, 

Michigan, regarding an amendment to the Class C Liquor License and Operating 
Agreement. 
a.   PUBLIC HEARING – Request by Whistle Stop I, LLC, 24060 Woodward 

Avenue, Pleasant Ridge, Michigan, regarding an amendment to the Class C Liquor 
License and Operating Agreement. 

b. Request by Whistle Stop I, LLC, 24060 Woodward Avenue, Pleasant Ridge, 
Michigan, regarding an amendment to the Class C Liquor License and Operating 
Agreement.  

 
7. Condemnation of the property commonly known as 71 Devonshire Road, Pleasant 

Ridge, Michigan. 
a. Public Hearing – Solicitation of public comments on the proposed condemnation 

of the property commonly known as 71 Devonshire, Pleasant Ridge, Michigan. 
b. Condemnation of the property commonly known as 71 Devonshire, Pleasant Ridge, 

Michigan. 
 
 
 
 
 
 



8. Oakland County Community Development Block Grant Program Year 2020
Community Application and Subrecipient Agreement.
a. PUBLIC HEARING – Oakland County Community Development Block Grant

Program Year 2020 Community Application and Subrecipient Agreement.
b. Oakland County Community Development Block Grant Program Year 2020

Community Application and Subrecipient Agreement.

9. Ordinance to amend Chapter 78, Vegetation, by the addition of a new Section Sec.
78-74 Trimming or cutting of trees susceptible to oak wilt.
a. PUBLIC HEARING – Solicitation of public comments on Ordinance to amend

Chapter 78, Vegetation, by the addition of a new Section Sec. 78-74, Trimming or
cutting of trees susceptible to oak wilt.

b. Ordinance 437 to amend Chapter 78, Vegetation, by the addition of a new Section
Sec. 78-74, Trimming or cutting of trees susceptible to oak wilt.

10. City Commission Liaison Reports.
• Commissioner Scott – Historical Commission.
• Commissioner Wahl – Recreation Commission.
• Commissioner Krzysiak – Ferndale Public Schools.
• Commissioner Perry – Planning/DDA, Committee Liaison.

11. Consideration of the Official Certification and Election Report of the General 
Election held Tuesday, November 5, 2019.

12. Administration of the Oath of Office to City Commissioner Ann Perry.

13. Administration of the Oath of Office to City Commissioner Christopher Budnik.

14. Governmental Reports.

15. Consent Agenda.
All items listed on the Consent Agenda are considered to be routine by the City Commission, will be enacted 
by one motion and approved by a roll call vote.  There will be no separate discussion of these items unless a 
City Commissioner or visitor so requests, in which event, the item will be removed from the consent agenda 
and considered as the last item of business.

a. Consideration of the minutes of the Regular City Commission Meeting held Tuesday, 
October 8, 2019.

b. Consideration of the Monthly Disbursement Report.
c. Authorization of Mayor Kurt Metzger, City Commissioner Ann Perry, City 

Commissioner Bret Scott, City Clerk Amy M. Allison, and Police Chief Kevin 
Nowak and to sign checks on behalf of the City of Pleasant Ridge.

16. Establishing a public hearing on Tuesday, December 10, 2019, at 7:30pm to solicit 
public comments on an ordinance to amend the Pleasant Ridge City Code by the 
addition of a new Section 34-52(14) establishing a maximum sound level for 
mechanical equipment in residential areas and by the addition of a new Section 
82-193(9) regarding the location of air conditioners and generators in the side yard.



 

 

17. City Manager’s Report. 
   
18. Other Business. 
   
19. Adjournment. 
 
 

 
 
 

Please join us for a light reception 
to welcome of our newly elected  

City Commissioners Christopher Budnik and Ann Perry 
and to offer sincere thanks to 

City Commissioner Jason Krzysiak 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
In the spirit of compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, individuals with a disability should feel 
free to contact the City at least seventy-two (72) hours in advance of the meeting, if requesting 
accommodations. 

 



Date Ferndale Forward 

Item 5



Since we last visited…
2

• Ferndale Schools adopts new strategic plan
• A Strategic Plan is comprised of the vision, mission, 

values, strategic directions and goals for a school district. It is 
a dynamic, active document that guides decision-making at 
the school and District levels.

• To view our new Strategic Plan visit 
https://www.ferndaleschools.org/district/about/strategic-plan



Equity Based Strategic Plan
3

• Equity Vision Statement:
• At FPS, we are a school family of continual learners. We support each 

and every student to develop their purpose, plan, and passion. We 
encourage and honor dialogue about the histories, cultures, and goals of 
our communities. We actively and intentionally facilitate equitable access 
and representation, meaningful participation, and high expectations for 
ALL.



Equity Based Strategic Plan
4



Ferndale Innovation
5



Ferndale Innovation
6

• 2019 Equity Innovator Award
• This award was presented by the Midwest & 

Plains Equity Assistance Center.
• FPS was selected as the Equity Innovator because of the 

passion and persistence exhibited by school community 
stakeholders, educators, and administrators in pursuit of 
educational equity for all students in the district. 

• In particular, FPS was recognized for attention paid to 
groups of students who have been historically 
marginalized within our community.



Ferndale Innovation
7

• 2019 Equity Innovator Award
• Ferndale Public Schools has been recognized 

as an Innovative District by the International 
Center for Leadership in Education, a division 
of Houghton Mifflin Harcourt, for our Social-
Emotional Learning (SEL) curriculum.
• “Innovative Districts recognize the need for 

change, collectively establish a vision, and 
systematically work together to create a 
learning environment that enables students of 
all abilities to thrive. They focus on leveraging 
individual data to make instructional decisions 
and personalize instruction; balance rigor and 
relevance in interdisciplinary learning; and 
create equity, access, and opportunities for all.”



2020 Bond Update
8

• What is a Bond?
• A Bond is similar to a home mortgage.

• A school district borrows a lump sum dollar amount 
through the sale of bonds and then pays the money 
back over a specified period of years.



2020 Bond Update
9

• Why now?
• We currently in the rare position where we have 

the ability to sell bonds at a zero mil increase, 
while having the need for facility improvements.

2020 $53M

2023 $35.5M

2026 $36M
0 mill increase, $125M, 30 year term



2020 Bond Update
10

• How much will a March 2020 
Bond cost the taxpayer?

• Currently Ferndale Schools levies 
7 mils in taxes.

• The March 2020 Bond would 
simply continue that millage rate.

• The Bond would result in a 0 mil 
increase.



2020 Bond Update
11

• What is a “three series bond”?
• Doing a three series bond means that with one 

vote in March of 2020 the taxpayers can approve 
Ferndale Schools to sell bonds at three different 
times over the next 6 years, 2020, 

• This allows FPS to maximize our efficiencies and 
create a decade long, comprehensive facilities plan.



2020 Bond Update
12

• Focus of the 2020 Bond
• Safety, Sustainability, Reimagine the classroom 

• Major Projects
• A New Kindergarten – 2nd grade elementary school at Jackson Park (current site of 

CASA)
• Roosevelt Building becomes new home of CASA

• EVERY classroom in the district is updated – furniture, technology, flooring, etc
• Secured entry vestibules constructed at each school
• Winter gym entry addition & concessions

• Other Projects
• Removal of one pool, convert space to weight room/wrestling room
• Stadium building upgrades - new layout for softball / baseball

• New varsity baseball and softball fields
• 8 new tennis courts
• Stem/steam addition
• Music room addition
• Theater backstage addition - scene shop, dressing, green room, etc.
• And more!!!



Headlee Override
13

• What is a Headlee Override?

• This will also be on the March 2020 ballot.

• Bottom line a “yes” vote on the Bond and Headlee 
Override will result in no increase to the current millage 
rate.



Handouts
14



Additional Information
15

• More information on the March 2020 Bond Proposal
• www.FerndaleForward.com 

• Want to get involved?
• Please contact Bill.Good@ferndaleschools.org to join the Bond Committee 

• Email or call Dania or Jamie for a facilities tour:
• Dania Bazzi, Superintendent 313-220-6797 or 

dania.bazzi@ferndaleschools.org

• Jamie Stottlemyer, Director of Operations 248-701-4630 or 
james.stottlemyer@ferndaleschools.org



City of Pleasant Ridge 
James Breuckman, City Manager 

From: Jim Breuckman, City Manager 

To: City Commission 

Date: November 6, 2019 

Re: Whistle Stop Liquor License Amendment 

Overview 
The owner of the Whistle Stop restaurant has leased the former Susan’s Special Needs space and is 

proposing to expand the restaurant. The restaurant expansion will consist of 404 sq. ft. of new space 

connected to the existing Whistle Stop dining room. The remainder of the former Susan’s space will not be 

used for restaurant purposes.  With the addition of the proposed space, a liquor license review and 

operating plan amendment is required. 

Background 
In 2015 the owners of the Whistle Stop restaurant applied for a transfer of the liquor license formerly held 

by Mae’s Restaurant.  The transfer was conditioned upon the occupancy and seating as it had existed at 

the time.   

With the closure of the Susan’s Special Needs business, the owners of Whistle Stop leased out the 

additional space in order to add three (3) tables/ twelve (12) seats.  The proposal is to add 404/sf of new 

space, which has been currently built.  The remainder of the old Susan’s space will be vacant and used for 

storage.  The owners of Whistle Stop have received site plan/special land use approval from the Planning 

Commission at its meeting held Monday, September 23, 2019.  The restaurant is an existing 

nonconforming use, and only the new portion of the restaurant requires special land use approval. The new 

portion of the restaurant must also comply with zoning ordinance requirements. 

Specifically, the new portion of the restaurant must meet Zoning Ordinance off-street parking requirements 

and dumpster/garbage screening requirements.   

1. Parking. Four parking spaces are required for the new restaurant parking space - 1 parking space

per 100 sq. ft. of useable floor area is required for restaurants. Four parking spaces are provided to

the south of the former Susan’s space.

2. Garbage. The restaurant has long stored its garbage containers along the Amherst sidewalk. This

condition preceded the Whistle Stop taking over the restaurant. As part of this special land use

request, the garbage containers must be brought into compliance with Zoning Ordinance

standards. The garbage storage area will now be on the Susan’s side of the site, at the east side of

the parking lot. The containers will be in a screened enclosure and will be carted over to the

Amherst curb on trash pickup days.

Item 6a-b



Whistle Stop Liquor License Amendment 

November 6, 2019 - Page 2 of 2 

 

 

In their motion, the Planning Commission included provisions regarding the additional parking, signage for 

the parking lot, moving the refuse collection into the parking lot to the south of the building and limited the 

hours of operation to the existing hours.    

 

After the public hearing the City Commission may consider the attached amendment to the Whistle Stop 

liquor license operating agreement. The amendment changes only the number of seats with the new 

expansion. For reference, the existing agreement which will remain in effect is also attached to this memo. 

Much of the information contained in the application is personal and confidential and, to protect the 

privacy of the applicant, has not been included in the packet.   

 

Requested Action 
City Commission consideration of the requested amendment to the Whistle Stop liquor license operating 

agreement following the public hearing. 

 





































































PUBLIC 
COMMENTS



FW: New message from "City of Pleasant Ridge Michigan"
James Breuckman
Tue 10/22/2019 11:50 AM
To: Amy Allison <cityclerk@cityofpleasantridge.org>
For the file.

From: City of Pleasant Ridge Michigan <pleasantridgecity@gmail.com> 
Sent: Tuesday, October 22, 2019 11:38 AM
To: James Breuckman <citymanager@cityofpleasantridge.org>
Subject: New message from "City of Pleasant Ridge Michigan"

Name: Tina Rubino
Message: Please forward to the City Manager, James Breuckman.
Just a short note that as a Pleasant Ridge resident, I am all for the expansion of Whistle Stop.

Thank you,
Tina Rubino
66 Fairwood Blvd

---

Date: October 22, 2019
Time: 11:37 am
Page URL: https://cityofpleasantridge.org/contact/
User Agent: Mozilla/5.0 (Windows NT 10.0; Win64; x64) AppleWebKit/537.36 (KHTML, like Gecko) 
Chrome/77.0.3865.120 Safari/537.36
Remote IP: 75.15.184.231
Powered by: Elementor

Page 1 of 1

10/23/2019https://outlook.office.com/mail/inbox/id/AAMkAGJlNzNiMTcyLTEwZjctNGVjMC05M...



FW: Whistle Stop request to add tables
James Breuckman
Wed 10/23/2019 8:04 AM
To: Amy Allison <cityclerk@cityofpleasantridge.org>

From: Carolyn Branigan  
Sent: Tuesday, October 22, 2019 5:32 PM
To: James Breuckman <citymanager@cityofpleasantridge.org>
Subject: Whistle Stop request to add tables

Please let them add the table and chairs in the newly expanded space!  I would love for the wait to be 
shorter in the morning for breakfast!

Carolyn Branigan (And my entire adult family feels the same!)

Page 1 of 1

10/23/2019https://outlook.office.com/mail/deeplink?version=2019101401.13&popoutv2=1



FW: Whistle Stop
James Breuckman
Mon 10/28/2019 10:13 AM
To:  Amy Allison <cityclerk@cityofpleasantridge.org>
For the file.

From: Kathy Cavazos 
Sent: Thursday, October 24, 2019 5:57 PM
To: James Breuckman <citymanager@cityofpleasantridge.org>
Cc: Kathy Cavazos 
Subject: Whistle Stop

Members of the Pleasant Ridge City Commission,

I am responding, in favor of the amendment to the Liquor License Development and 
Operations agreement for the Whistle Stop restaurant.
The restaurant is a very positive place of business in our city.  I believe that our residents 
enjoy the small community feel of the establishment.
It is unique,  as is our community.  We should embrace and continue to welcome them into 
our community. 

Thank you for your consideration.

Kathy Cavazos
18 Norwich

Page 1 of 1

10/28/2019https://outlook.office.com/mail/inbox/id/AAMkAGJlNzNiMTcyLTEwZjctNGVjMC05M...



FW: Whistle Stop expansion and liquor license
James Breuckman
Tue 10/29/2019 9:48 AM
To: Amy Allison <cityclerk@cityofpleasantridge.org>
One more.

From: Bridget Baker 
Sent: Monday, October 28, 2019 9:59 PM
To: James Breuckman <citymanager@cityofpleasantridge.org>
Subject: Whistle Stop expansion and liquor license

Hi Mr. Breuckman,

I will be unable to attend the public hearing regarding this matter, but I have no problem with the 
proposed liquor license for the newly expanded Whistle Stop. 

Thanks for providing an opportunity for comment,
Bridget
128 Cambridge Blvd

Page 1 of 1

10/29/2019https://outlook.office.com/mail/inbox/id/AAMkAGJlNzNiMTcyLTEwZjctNGVjMC05M...



FW: Whistle Stop 1 hearing response
James Breuckman
Tue 11/5/2019 1:12 PM
To: Amy Allison <cityclerk@cityofpleasantridge.org>

-----Original Message-----
From: Susan Sanitate 
Sent: Tuesday, November 5, 2019 12:36 PM
To: James Breuckman <citymanager@cityofpleasantridge.org>
Subject: Whistle Stop 1 hearing response

Dear Jim -

Giovanni and I will be out of town for the hearing, so I wanted to give you our input. 

It seems that the expansion is a "done deal"; the space has been opened up for several weeks 
now, although there is no one using it yet.  My hope is that the owner has not presumed too 
much.

What concerns us is that the owner seems to view this great little restaurant as a for-profit 
deal only. He has not extended any support (to my knowledge) toward the community of PR.  
He has refused to donate toward the swim team and I have not seen an ad for the restaurant, 
any promotional effort, or know of any contribution the owner has made to the Auction.

I could be misinformed or uninformed but I wonder.  It seems like a "take" but no "give back" 
to the community.  That's not reflective of the type of community PR really is.  For these 
reasons, the Whistle Stop is not our favorite local place to go any more.  Because it is such a 
convenient location for us, we used to eat there on weekdays several times a month, and 
honestly, we miss it.  We would welcome a shift back to having a true "neighborhood diner".

Regarding the liquor license review, we feel there should be no change or expansion of the 
license that now exists.

Thank you.

Susan and Giovanni Sanitate

Sent from my iPad

Page 1 of 1

11/5/2019https://outlook.office.com/mail/inbox/id/AAMkAGJlNzNiMTcyLTEwZjctNGVjMC05M...



City of Pleasant Ridge 
Amy Drealan, City Clerk 

From: Amy Drealan, City Clerk 

To: James Breuckman, City Manager 

Date: November 12, 2019 

Re: Public Hearing – 71 Devonshire Condemnation 

Overview 

The property located at 71 Devonshire Road has been an ongoing building department issue dating back 

to 1998. This memo details a timeline of events done by the building department in terms of the property. 

Background 

This property has had chronic blight violations dating back to 1998, including the garage becoming so 

dilapidated that it required a violation notice including the threat of court action to have it removed.  

General maintenance of this property has been lax, and the police have left numerous tall 

grass/weeds/refuse notices.  The owner of the property was elderly, and the City was patient with the 

owner and she worked with her son and other family members to get the property cleaned up.    

In July 2019, the property once again was citied for blight.  It was also citied for health and safety code 

violations as the front porch stairs had completely crumbled and were unsafe.  The police department and 

code enforcement officer visit the property and noted that dumpster bags had been delivered to the 

property and were overflowing with construction debris. The Pleasant Ridge Police Department posted a 

Stop Work order on July 25th.  At that time, the police officer found an unsecure door.  While he was 

attempting to secure the property, he could see that the first floor had been gutted and was down to the 

studs and the owner had wired the basement with lighting and heating apparatus, again without the 

benefit of a permit.  The owner ignored the code enforcement notices until the stop work was posted at the 

property.  

The granddaughter of the owner responded on August 5th and indicated she was the new owner; however, 

she was not aware she was required to transfer the property into her name.  She indicated she owned the 

property for over one year, but does not live there, so the property is vacant.  She filed the proper 

paperwork to transfer the property and applied for a building permit on August 15th.  After review and 

consideration by the Building Official, and much back and forth between the new owner, the permit for first 

floor renovation (kitchen and bathroom) was issued on August 21st.  Permits for the electrical and plumbing 

renovation and the HVAC replacement have not been obtained and no interior inspections have been 

allowed.  The owner has not made the property available to code enforcement or the Building Official.      

Item 7a-b



The new/current owner of the property has been into City Hall and spoke with the Building Department 

Clerk several times over the past month discussing the progress of the remodel and questioning why she 

was required to obtain electrical, plumbing and HVAC permits.  The Building Clerk and Building Official 

explained the need for the proper permits and reiterated the need for the front porch steps to be 

repaired/replaced. 

 

On October 14th, the building department received a message regarding the condition of the property and 

noxious odors emitting from the vacant property.  The police department sent an officer to view the 

property.  The Police Chief and I also visited the property.  By all appearance no progress had been made at 

the property and that the condition of the property has been getting worse, the side entry door facing 

Gainsboro Park is still not secure, there is an entry door leaning against another door but does not appear 

to latch or close properly.  There are windows broken out in the rear of the property and most other 

windows are open and the interior of the home is exposed to the elements.  The front porch looks 

completely inaccessible and the stairs at the front porch are deteriorated.  In the yard there is tall 

grass/weeds, large portions of a tree trunk from a tree that looks like it was partially removed, refuse 

behind and at the side of the property (including a bathtub) and there are numerous rat holes throughout 

the property including under the porch. 

 

A notice was forwarded to the homeowner that the City scheduled a public hearing for Tuesday, November 

12, 2019 to consider condemnation of the property.  It instructed the homeowner begin the permitting 

process for the rehabilitation and to resolve all the property maintenance issues.  The deadline for the 

permits to be applied for and approved will be November 7, 2019, including an interior inspection by the 

building official.  The property maintenance issues will also have to be addressed by that date.  As of today, 

there has been no progress on the property.  The homeowner did contact the Building Department on 

November 6th to indicate she will be attending the public hearing.  She stated she has contactors to clean 

the yard and reconstruct the front porch but did not give a firm timeline when this would happen.  Since the 

October meeting, I have had four additional complaints regarding the condition of the property.   

 

Requested Action 
The City Commission hold a public hearing to consider condemnation of the property commonly knowns as 

71 Devonshire Road, Pleasant Ridge, Michigan.    

 



















 

 

City of Pleasant Ridge 

 

23925 Woodward Avenue, Pleasant Ridge, Michigan 48069 

Phone: 248-541-2901 • Web: www.cityofpleasantridge.org 

City Commission 

Kurt Metzger, Mayor 

Jason Krzysiak 

Ann Perry 

Bret Scott 

Amanda Wahl 

 

City Manager 

James Breuckman 

 
 
 
 

PUBLIC NOTICE 
 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN in accordance with Section 4.03 (B) of the Pleasant 

Ridge City Code that a Public Hearing will be held on Tuesday, November 12, 2019, 

7:30 p.m., in the City Commission Chambers, 23925 Woodward Avenue, Pleasant 

Ridge, Michigan 48069, to solicit comments on the following item: 

 

 

Condemnation of the property commonly known as  

71 Devonshire Road, Pleasant Ridge Michigan 

 

 

This meeting will be open to the public, you are welcome to attend the meeting.  If that 

is not possible, please feel free to contact me by telephone (248-541-2901) to discuss 

this matter, or via email at cityclerk@cityofpleasantridge.org. You may submit your 

comments in writing to my attention. 

 

 

Amy M. Drealan 

City Clerk 

 
 
 
 
 
Posted 10/16/2019 – This notice is not to be removed except by an authorized City official.   

mailto:cityclerk@cityofpleasantridge.org
mailto:cityclerk@cityofpleasantridge.org


 

 

City of Pleasant Ridge 

 

23925 Woodward Avenue, Pleasant Ridge, Michigan 48069 

Phone: 248-541-2901 • Web: www.cityofpleasantridge.org 

City Commission 

Kurt Metzger, Mayor 

Jason Krzysiak 

Ann Perry 

Bret Scott 

Amanda Wahl 

 

City Manager 

James Breuckman 

 
October 16, 2019 
 
Ms. Brittany Flowers 
71 Devonshire 
Pleasant Ridge, Michigan 48069 
 
 RE: Notice of Public Hearing to Consider Condemnation 
  71 Devonshire, Pleasant Ridge, Michigan – 60-25-27-128-036 
 
Dear Ms. Flowers: 
 
This shall serve as your notice that your property was declared unsafe and has been posted DO NOT 
OCCUPY since October 16, 2019.  Since little progress has been made regarding the rehabilitation of 
the property, and the property continues to deteriorate, this property has been officially declared a 
nuisance as defined in the Pleasant Ridge City Code, Article III, Nuisance, including but not limited to, 
Section 34-52 (1), (2), and (3).  
 
The exterior of the property must also be maintained to City Code standards, including but not limited 
to lawn and landscape maintenance, debris removal, rat infestation abatement, and removal of the 
dead tree and tree trunks located on the property.  The broken windows and doors must be secured 
immediately.  Inoperable and/or open windows must be repaired and closed to protect the interior 
from the elements.  Plans and permits must be approved, and work must begin for your reconstruction 
and interior inspections held on or before November 7, 2019.   
 
Failure to respond to this notification will result in the City taking steps to rectify the nuisance, up to 
and including demolition of the property, the cost of such will be assessed to the property.  There will 
be no extensions granted due to the health and safety issues of the property.  The next action the City 
will take is to hold a public hearing to consider condemnation of the property.  The public hearing is 
scheduled for Tuesday November 12, 2019. 
 
I am hopeful that the timeline presented in this correspondence can be met and further steps by the 
City do not need to be taken.   
 
Should you have any questions please feel free to contact the Building Department. 
   
Sincerely, 

 
Amy Drealan 
City Clerk 
 
cc: R. Kee, Building Official 
 City Attorney 
 file  



City of Pleasant Ridge
23925 Woodward Avenue, Pleasant Ridge, Michigan 48069 

Phone: 248-541-2901 • Web: www.cityofpleasantridge.org

City Commission 

Kurt Metzger, Mayor 

Jason Krzysiak 

Ann Perry 

Bret Scott 

Amanda Wahl 

City Manager 

James Breuckman

October 31, 2019

Dear Resident: 

A public hearing will be held Tuesday, November 12, 2019, at 7:30 p.m. at City Hall during the 
November City Commission meeting to consider condemnation of the property commonly known as 
71 Devonshire Road Pleasant Ridge. 

Specifically, the public hearing is being held to solicit public comments on the state of the property and 
the next steps going forward.  The property has been declared unsafe and has been posted DO NOT 
OCCUPY. Little progress has been made to repair the property, and tit continues to deteriorate. This 
property has been officially declared a nuisance as defined in the Pleasant Ridge City Code, Article III, 
Nuisance, including but not limited to, Section 34-52 (1), (2), and (3). 

It is not our intention or desire to demolish the property, but to compel the property owner to abate 
the nuisance. If condemned, the property owner will have the opportunity to establish a schedule to 
abate the nuisance and restore the property to an occupiable condition that meets code requirements. If 
the property owner does not meet the schedule the City may proceed to demolish the property as a last 
resort.  

You are welcome to attend the meeting.  If that is not possible, please feel free to contact me by 
telephone to discuss this matter, or via email at cityclerk@cityofpleasantridge.org. You may submit your 
comments in writing to my attention and I will forward them to the members of the City Commission. 

Sincerely, 

Amy M. Drealan 
City Clerk 

Mailed to all properties within 300’ of 71 Devonshire 

mailto:cityclerk@cityofpleasantridge.org


City of Pleasant Ridge 
Amy M. Drealan, City Clerk 

From: 

To: 

Date: 

Re: 

Amy M. Drealan, City Clerk  Jim 

Breuckman, City Manager 

November 12, 2019
2020 CDBG Program

In order to qualify for Federal funding through the Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) 

Program, a Public Hearing must be held and a resolution adopted by the governing body to approve 

the application and Subrecipient agreement.  Pleasant Ridge qualifies for the minimum funding 

level, which has been $7,000. Since the City receives funding at the minimum level, all the funds 

can be programed into one designated category or divided equally between two programs, or 

$3,500/each. 

Historical and Action for consideration 

It has been increasingly difficult to find an appropriate way to spend the City’s eligible CDBG funds.  

Several years ago, the City’s low/moderate income area was eliminated and the city lost its ability to 

designate funds for programs such as sidewalk repairs, tree planting, and street improvements, 

which require at least a portion of the project be in the low/mod area.  Listed below is the program 

category and recommended funding for the 2020 Program year.  This is the same program the City

funded for the last several years.  

Public Services/ - $7,000 Public Service funds are designated to provide seniors, age  

Senior Services  62 and above, transportation services for the Senior Travel 

Club, meals at the 50+ club events and other related 

workshops geared towards residents 62 and above.  This 

program also may be used for the reasonable costs of overall 

program management, coordination, monitoring and 

evaluation for the program.  

Requested Action 

After the public hearing, City Commission determination for funding appropriation and approval 
of the 2020 Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Community Application and 
Subrecipient Agreement.  

Item 8a-b



City of Pleasant Ridge 
James Breuckman, City Manager 

From: Jim Breuckman, City Manager 

To: City Commission 

Date: November 6, 2019 

Re: Oak Wilt Tree Trimming Ordinance 

Overview 
Attached is an ordinance for consideration restricting the trimming of oak trees susceptible to oak wilt 

between April 1 and November 1. 

Background 
Oak wilt is a fungal disease that affects mostly trees in the red oak group (oaks with pointy tips). White 

oaks, which have round-tipped leaves, are less visible. The disease is transmitted from an infected tree by 

sap-feeding beetles. The beetles are attracted quickly to fresh wounds on oak trees, and the beetles can 

then transmit the disease to the unaffected but newly-cut oak tree. Furthermore, oaks have root systems 

that graft together, allowing the movement of the fungus from tree to tree underground. One infected tree 

can cause the death of any nearby oaks in this manner, and it is very difficult and often impossible to stop 

the transmission of the disease once it is established in a stand of oaks. 

For these reasons, it is imperative to not trim or cut down oak trees during the time period when the 

beetles are active. The beetles that transmit oak wilt are active when average daily temperatures are 

above 50 degrees. In Michigan, this corresponds to an active season from April 1 through October 31, 

generally, for the beetles. 

The City already adheres to best practices and does not do any work on oak trees during the April 1 – 

November 1 period, unless in an emergency where an oak is damaged by a storm or other exogenous 

causes. The proposed ordinance will ensure that oak trees in the City are not cut by homeowners or third 

parties such as DTE doing line clearing work. 

Requested Action 
City Commission consideration of the attached ordinance following the a public hearing. 

Item 9a-b



CITY OF PLEASANT RIDGE 

Ordinance No 437 
 

 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE CITY OF PLEASANT RIDGE CODE OF 

ORDINANCES, CHAPTER 78 – VEGETATION 
 

THE CITY OF PLEASANT RIDGE ORDAINS: 
 

Section 1. 

 

A new Section 78-74 of the Pleasant Ridge Code of Ordinances is added as follows: 

 

Sec. 78-74 Trimming or cutting of trees susceptible to oak wilt 

 

(a) Oak trees shall not be pruned or trimmed between April 1 and October 31 regardless of 

their location in a public right-of-way, private property, or utility easement. 

 

(b) Any wounds, whether made by trimming, construction or accident, shall be treated 

immediately with an acceptable tree pruning sealer or latex paint to mask the exposed 

wound from contamination. Such repair shall occur as soon as possible, but not more than 

48 hours of the time of the injury. 

 

(c) It shall be the responsibility of the property owner or any contractor to repair or cause to 

be repaired any oak trees that are inadvertently damaged or injured by storms, 

construction, accidents, or any other cause between April 1 and October 31. Exposed 

jagged surfaces shall be removed and sealed in accordance with the preceding subsection. 

 

(d) Trees confirmed with oak wilt shall be the responsibility of the property owner to 

perform any of the following applicable practices, as approved in advance by the City 

Manager: 

 

a. Members of the red oak family which have died of oak wilt shall be removed 

within 4 weeks. 

 

b. Members of the red oak family not infected by oak wilt, but potentially root 

grafted to a tree that was killed or diseased with oak wilt, shall be treated by 

injection of fungicide. 

 

c. Members of the white oak family shall be treated with an appropriate tree 

injection. 

 

d. Trenching may be a practice in lieu or in addition to injections for oak wilt 

management. 

 

e. Dead oak trees will be removed and properly disposed by chipping to less than 3 

inches or removed to a disposal site for debarking, burning, or burial. Stumps left 

by the removal of oak trees shall be promptly removed or buried. 

 



 

Section 2. Severability. 
 

Should any provision or part of this Article be declared by any court of competent 

jurisdiction to be invalid or unenforceable, the same shall not affect the validity or enforceability 

of the balance of this Article, which shall remain in full force and effect. 
 

Section 3. Repealer. 
 

All other ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with this ordinance are hereby 

repealed only to the extent necessary to give this Ordinance full force and effect. 
 

Section 4. Savings clause. 
 

Nothing in this Article shall be construed to affect any suit or proceeding pending in any 

court or any rights acquired or any liability incurred, or any cause or causes of action acquired or 

existing, under any act or ordinance hereby repealed as cited in Section 8 of this Ordinance; nor 

shall any just or legal right or remedy of any character be lost, impaired, or affected by this 

Ordinance. 
 

Section 5. Effective Date. 
 

This Ordinance shall become effective seven days after publication of a notice of 

adoption, as provided by law. 
 

Section 6. Adoption. 
 

This Ordinance is hereby declared to have been adopted by the Commission of the City 

of Pleasant Ridge at a meeting duly called and held on the ___ day of ______, 2019, and ordered 

to be given publication in the manner prescribed by law. 
 

 

 

 
 

 

Amy M. Drealan, City Clerk 
 

 

City Commission Introduction:   Tuesday, October 15, 2019 

City Commission Public Hearing:    Tuesday, November 12, 2019 

City Commission Adoption:      

Published:        

Effective:        
 

 

ption:  

 

 
 

 

 

 

 



City of Pleasant Ridge 
Amy M. Allison, City Clerk 

From: 

To: 

Date: 

Re: 

Amy M. Allison, City Clerk 

Mayor and City Commission 

November 12, 2019 

November 5, 2019 Election Results 

The City General Election was held Tuesday, November 5, 2019. Approximately 28% of the registered 

voters cast a ballot on Election Day, as compared with 44% in 2017, 24% in 2015, 52% in 2013, 45 % 

in 2011, 33% in 2009, 10% in 2007 and 13% in 2005. 

Precinct 1 Precinct 2 Total 

City Commissioner 

Christopher Budnik 252 258 510 

Ann Perry 308 303 611 

Library Renewal Millage 

Yes 316 314 630 

No 31 34 65 

OCC Operating Renewal Millage 

Yes 292 297 589 

No 55 51 106 

Total Voters 

TOTAL PRECINCT 1 

TOTAL PRECINCT 2 

TOTAL VOTERS 

There was a total of 348 ballots cast in Precinct #1, and 349 in Precinct #2. Both precincts include 

absentee ballots. I have not received the official Certification and Election Report from the Oakland 

County Board of Canvassers, however, I anticipate I will have it by the meeting. The official 

Certification and Election Report will be received and filed. 

697 

348 

349 

Item 11



1 

City of Pleasant Ridge 

23925 Woodward Avenue 

Pleasant Ridge, Michigan 48069 

Regular City Commission Meeting 
October 15, 2019 

Having been duly publicized, Mayor Metzger called the meeting to order at 7:33 p.m. 

Present: Commissioners Krzysiak, Perry, Scott, Wahl, Mayor Metzger 
Also Present: City Manager Breuckman, City Clerk Drealan 
Absent:  None 

Beautification Awards 
Mr. Don Daniels presented awards on behalf of the Beautification Committee.  Recipients receive a 
specially commissioned tile and a lawn sign.  The recipients were:  A11 Devonshire, Michael Holmes; 
56 Ridge Road, Judith and Robert Wachler; 54 Woodward Heights, Michele Varady; 22 Poplar Park, 
Amy and Brian Roemer.  Special recognition was given to Rick Cook and Michael Yoskovich for the 
Ridge Roots community garden.   

Public Discussion 

Allison Smith, 85 Wellesley, objected to the tall pathway lighting that has been installed in the park.  
The footpath lighting was acceptable but the tall lights illuminate her home.  The lights are left on all 
night long.  Eight foot spruce have been planted but will take a great deal of time to grow to cover 
the 14 foot lights.   

Cathy Koch, 83 Wellesley, also objected to the pathway lighting in the park.  She noted that many 
other residents have been affected.  She also mentioned the lighting at the Iron Ridge Development.  
The problem will worsen as the trees lose their leaves.  She commented that the fact that the lights are 
on all night encourages people to use the park after hours.   

Bill Rauch, 90 Wellesley, expressed concern that the park pathway lighting has deviated from the 
mission stated in the budget.  The tall lighting illuminates the playscapes and not just the pathway.  He 
commented that the park hours are not posted at the park.   

Breuckman commented that they are looking into putting a timer on the pole lights.  He noted that 
there are no set hours for the park.  The 14-foot pole lights still fall within the definition of low 
lighting.  Street level or parking lot lighting is typically 25 or 30 feet.  He discussed the foot candles of 
light that are generated by the pole lights.  He indicated that glare is more of a problem which is why 
the trees were planted.  The Iron Ridge lights are taller and so trees cannot be planted to block them.  
The Iron Ridge lights meet city code.  Scott discussed closing the tennis courts during late fall and 

Item 15a



2 
 

winter so that the lights never come on.  Krzysiak raised the issue of looking into strengthening the 
lighting ordinance.  Breuckman indicated that there was little more that they could do other than set 
certain height standards.  There was discussion that there used to be posted park hours and Krzysiak 
suggested building that into the ordinance.  He also raised the possibility of moving some of the taller 
lighting to the dog park and not installing the remaining pole light.  Metzger also expressed concern 
regarding the installation of the second pole light.  Breuckman indicated that more trees can be planted 
but it will take three or four years for them to block the lights.   

Ted Zachary, 68 Devonshire, Pleasant Ridge Environmental Committee, expressed support for 
placing timers on the lights to reduce energy consumption.  Recycling tonnage was 21 tons for August.  
Mixed solid waste was 80 tons.  He suggested publishing a list in the Ridger of organizations that will 
pick up or accept drop offs of items that can be reused or donated to charity rather than going into 
the solid waste stream.  He raised examples of furniture, medical equipment and books.  Scott 
suggested adding the Yahoo group Freecycle to the list.  New ideas for the list can be sent to 
wprtv@yahoo.com.   

Jay Foreman, 60 Oakdale, candy collection at 4 Ridge will begin on November 1 and end on election 
day.  The date stated in the Ridger is incorrect.  Last year 318 pounds of candy were donated.  He 
thanked Commission Krzysiak for his support and efforts in the community.  

Governmental Reports 
 
Chief Jack Pesha, Ferndale Fire Department, reported that two recent fires resulted from candles and 
one from halogen lights.  Home inspections can be schedule by going to the ferndalemi.gov website.  
He indicated that they intend to expand their community outreach including a File of Life program 
and user surveys.   
 
Chief Kevin Nowak, Pleasant Ridge Police Department, congratulated the beautification winners and 
the new Fire Chief.  He asked that residents not park in the street on scheduled leaf pick up days.  He 
also urged caution when parking a hot car near a pile of dry leaves.  Recommended time for Halloween 
is from 5:00 to 8:00 p.m.   The department recently purchased body cameras.  Personnel are in the 
process of being trained.  New car cameras will also sync with the new body cameras.  He 
congratulated Krzysiak for his years of service.   
 
City Commission Liaison Reports 
Commissioner Krzysiak reported on Ferndale Public Schools.  The September School Board meeting 
included reports from school liaisons Nya Williams and Zoe Butters.  Ferndale Schools received the 
MAP Equity Innovator Award.  They will receive a $5000 honorarium to support equity efforts.  
School administration presents what make them proud about the district.  Trustee Anna Ebraham 
celebrated Jaya Webster from University High who is a member of the Detroit Youth Choir.  He 
thanked the School Board, teachers, administrators and parents.   
 
Commissioner Perry reported on the Planning Commission/DDA.  The September 23rd meeting was 
a public hearing regarding the expansion of the Whistlestop dining room.   One concern was the 
impact on parking.  The Commission passed the request which will now go before the full City 
Commission regarding the liquor license.  The next meeting is October 28th.     
 



3 
 

Commissioner Scott reported on the Historical Commission.  The Home and Garden Tour was a 
great success.  Over 300 people purchased tickets and attended the event.  They will discuss whether 
to keep the tour in the fall next year.  There are only five or six 100th Anniversary tiles left.  The 
Historic Museum is open every third Saturday from 10:00 to noon.   
 
Commissioner Wahl reported on the Recreation Commission.  The Halloween movie is Hocus Pocus.  
The Hayride is October 26th at Gainsboro Park.  Halloween house decorating contest ends on 
October 22nd.  Junior Garden Club meeting November 19th at 3:45 p.m.  Seventy shots were 
administered at the flu shot fair.  Next meeting is October 30th.   
 
Staff Addition to Agenda 
 
Breuckman requested an addition to the Agenda - Item 7a Call for Public Hearing regarding 
Condemnation of the Property Commonly Known as 71 Devonshire. 
 

19-3437 
Motion by Commissioner Perry, second by Commissioner Wahl, to approve the amendment to the 
agenda as presented.   
 
Adopted:   Yeas:  Commissioners Perry, Wahl, Krzysiak, Scott, Mayor Metzger 
   Nays:  None 
 
Schedule Public Hearing Tuesday, November 12, 2019, at 7:30 p.m. to Solicit Public Comment 
on Condemnation of the Property Commonly Known as 71 Devonshire, Pleasant Ridge 
 
Breuckman noted that this property has had chronic blight violations dating back to 1998.  The 
property was cited again for blight in July as well as for health and safety code violations.  The police 
and fire departments visited the property and there were numerous dumpster bags overflowing with 
construction debris.  A stop work order was issued on July 25th.  A door was open and the police 
observed multiple installations of wiring and heating equipment which had been done without a 
permit.  The previous owner passed away and their granddaughter is the new owner.  She indicated 
that she had owned the property for over year.  She does not live there, and she stated that the property 
is vacant.  She applied for the proper permits on August 15th.  Permits for first floor renovations were 
issued but there have been no permits for electrical, plumbing and HVAC replacement.  The owner 
has not allowed entry by inspectors or city personnel.  The city is in the process of replacing the code 
enforcement officer.  Noxious odors are now emitting from the property.  Police and city clerk visited 
the property yesterday and no progress has been made.  In fact, the condition of the property has 
seriously deteriorated.  The deadline for permits to be applied for and approved is November 7th, 
including an interior inspection by the building official before that date.   
 
Krzysiak inquired regarding the permitting costs.  Breuckman indicated that the owner has full equity 
in the property.  There is no mortgage and they do not live in the home.  Permit costs are based on 
the value of the job.   
 

19-3438 
Motion by Commissioner Perry, second by Commissioner Scott, to schedule a public hearing Tuesday, 
November 12, 2019, at 7:30 p.m. to consider condemnation of the property commonly known as 71 
Devonshire Road.   



4 
 

Adopted:   Yeas:  Commissioners Perry, Wahl, Krzysiak, Scott, Mayor Metzger 
   Nays:  None 
 
Consent Agenda 

19-3439 
Motion by Commissioner Wahl, second by Commissioner Perry, to approve the consent agenda as 
presented.   
 
Adopted:   Yeas:  Commissioners Perry, Wahl, Krzysiak, Scott, Mayor Metzger 
   Nays:  None 
 
Establish Public Hearing on November 12, 2019, at 7:30 p.m. to Solicit Public Comments on 
the Request by Whistle Stop I, LLC, to amend the Class C Liquor License Operating 
Agreement 
 
Breuckman noted that the Whistle Stop has begun work on expanding their dining room.  The liquor 
license operating agreement specifies the number of seats that can be in the restaurant, so it now needs 
to be amended to accommodate the expanded seating.  The remainder of the agreement will be 
unchanged.  Extra parking will be accommodated through the use of the parking attached to the new 
leased space.  The garbage storage will be moved off of Amherst.   
 

19-3440 
Motion by Commissioner Perry, second by Commissioner Scott, to schedule a public hearing Tuesday, 
November 12, 2019, at 7:30 p.m. to consider the request by Whistle Stop I, LLC, to amend the Class 
C Liquor License Operating Agreement.   
 
Adopted:   Yeas:  Commissioners Perry, Wahl, Krzysiak, Scott, Mayor Metzger 
   Nays:  None 
 
Establish Public Hearing on November 12, 2019, at 7:30 p.m. to Solicit Public Comments on 
an Ordinance Regarding Trimming or Cutting Trees Susceptible to Oak Wilt 
 
Breuckman stated that the city contracts with one part of Davey Tree, which is a very large 
corporation.  DTE contracts with another part of the same company.  The city got DTE to stop 
trimming oak trees until November 1st.  A previous city resolution had already addressed this issue.  
He presented a summary of oak wilt and its effect on the trees.  Oak tree roots graft together so the 
fungus can spread easily.  Red oak trees are more susceptible than white oaks.  Due to the ability of 
the fungus to spread rapidly, it is necessary for the city to be vigilant in removing trees that contain 
the disease.  It is best to trim oak trees when average daily temperatures are below 50 degrees which 
is essentially from November 1st to March 31st.  Krzysiak discussed the fact that the ordinance applies 
to private property and civil infractions could be written for violations.   
 

19-3441 
Motion by Commissioner Perry, second by Commissioner Wahl, to schedule a public hearing Tuesday, 
November 12, 2019, at 7:30 p.m. to solicit public comment on an ordinance regarding trimming or 
cutting trees susceptible to oak wilt.   
 
 



5 
 

Adopted:   Yeas:  Commissioners Perry, Wahl, Krzysiak, Scott, Mayor Metzger 
   Nays:  None 
 
Discussion Regarding Consolidation of Election Precincts  
 
Drealan indicated that the city periodically receives notice from the state that the number of voters 
does not meet the threshold for separate precincts.  The threshold is 2999 voters.  The city is under 
that and Drealan does not anticipate the number of voters will exceed that threshold in the near future.  
With the move to the electronic poll book, going to one precinct would be manageable at this time.  
There would still be the same number of voting booths and the change would allow the absentee 
ballots to be counted using a counting board.   The voting location would still be the community 
center.  The change would reduce the number of inspectors needed and would also reduce printing 
costs.  The Election Commission, which consists of Drealan, the city manager and the city attorney, 
recommends changing to one precinct beginning with the March 10, 2020 election.  The Election 
Commission will make an official determination in November and forward that decision to the 
Secretary of State.   
 
There is an election November 5th, 2019.  Absentee ballots are available now.  Ballots must be 
returned by 8:00 p.m. on election day.  Residents can register to vote at the city clerk's office through 
8:00 p.m. on election day.  She discussed the process for using the new electronic poll book.  It is also 
backed up by a paper poll book.   
 
Oakland County Sheriff's Office will be conducting the Coats for Cold Program.  There will be a 
collection box at both the recreation center and at city hall throughout the month of November.   
 
City Manager's Report 
Breuckman noted that the construction barrels are decreasing.  Construction continues at 
Woodward/Oakland Park for crosswalk improvement.  Leaf pickup begins the last Monday of 
October.  Leaf pickup will not be extended.  The last week in November is the end of leaf pick up.  
Leaves can be put out in bags until December 16th.  The Woodward Heights project is continuing 
and is both state and federally funded.  It should be completed within a few weeks.  The November 
City Commission meeting should be back in City Hall.   
 
Other Business 
Krzysiak proposed a resolution supporting the striking UAW workers.  The resolution was read by 
Krzysiak and amended by Scott.  Krzysiak agreed to the amended motion.   
 

19-3442 
Motion by Commissioner Krzysiak, second by Commissioner Perry, to issue the amended resolution 
in support of the striking UAW workers.   
 
Adopted:   Yeas:  Commissioners Perry, Wahl, Krzysiak, Scott, Mayor Metzger 
   Nays:  None 
 
Krzysiak indicated that he had lawn signs and he listed a number of ways to contribute towards 
fundraising.   
 



6 
 

The next book for the book club is Toni Morrison's first book.  November's book is Beneath the 
Tamarind Tree.   
 
Drealan reported on the upcoming election.  Two city commission seats will be on the ballot along 
with a library millage renewal.  There is also a renewal millage for Oakland Community College.  
Absentee ballots will be available soon.  Anyone can apply to vote absentee.  New e-poll books will 
be used for the first time in this election.   
 
Metzger discussed meeting Krzysiak at a public hearing in 2001 regarding moving fire services to 
Berkley.  Krzysiak was in favor of staying in Ferndale.  Krzysiak's input was very impactful.  Krzysiak 
and Perry ran against incumbents and won.  They worked hard to improve the communication and 
transparency of the city.  Metzger noted that the city has been changed profoundly to the good by 
Krzysiak's dedication and hard work.   
 
Perry expressed that she has been honored to serve on the commission with Krzysiak.   
 
Krzysiak noted that it has been a challenging pleasure to serve the city for the last eight years.   
 
With no further business or discussion, Mayor Metzger adjourned the meeting at 9:35 p.m. 
 
  
 
__________________________________ 
Mayor Kurt Metzger 
 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Amy M. Drealan, City Clerk 
 
 
/dleg 



PAYROLL LIABILITIES 7,014.35$   

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 603,452.09$   

TAX LIABILITIES 483,772.24$   

TOTAL 610,466.44$   

October 9, 2019 38,708.74$   

October 23, 2019 37,266.59$   

TOTAL 75,975.33$   

October 2019

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

PAYROLL

Item 15b



PG 1

Check Date Check Vendor Name Description Amount

10/9/2019 2425 ALERUS FINANCIAL RETIRMENT CONTRIBUTIONS 300.00$                 

10/9/2019 2426 ALERUS FINANCIAL RETIRMENT CONTRIBUTIONS 1,672.15$              

10/9/2019 2427 ALERUS FINANCIAL RETIRMENT CONTRIBUTIONS 1,168.73$              

10/9/2019 2428 MIFOP UNION DUES 188.00$                 

10/9/2019 2429 MISDU FOC DEDUCTIONS 224.60$                 

10/9/2019 2430 ALERUS FINANCIAL RHSP CONTRIBUTIONS 577.39$                 

10/9/2019 2431 ICMA - VANTANGEPOINT RETIRMENT CONTRIBUTIONS 80.00$                   

10/23/2019 2432 ALERUS FINANCIAL RETIRMENT CONTRIBUTIONS 300.00$                 

10/23/2019 2433 ALERUS FINANCIAL RETIRMENT CONTRIBUTIONS 1,524.72$              

10/23/2019 2434 ALERUS FINANCIAL RETIRMENT CONTRIBUTIONS 122.70$                 

10/23/2019 2435 MISDU FOC DEDUCTIONS 224.60$                 

10/23/2019 2436 ALERUS FINANCIAL RHSP CONTRIBUTIONS 551.46$                 

10/23/2019 2437 ICMA - VANTANGEPOINT RETIRMENT CONTRIBUTIONS 80.00$                   

TOTAL PAYROLL LIABILITIES 7,014.35$              

October 2019

                                                  CHECK REGISTER FOR CITY OF PLEASANT RIDGE                                            

PAYROLL LIABILITIES 



PG 2

Check Date Check Vendor Name Description Amount

10/15/2019 2669 CITY OF PLEASANT RIDGE-DDA 2019 TAX COLLECTIONS 6,706.11

10/15/2019 2670 CITY OF PLEASANT RIDGE-GENERAL 2019 TAX COLLECTIONS 156.22

10/15/2019 2671 CITY OF PLEASANT RIDGE-TAXES 2019 TAX COLLECTIONS 126,577.16

10/15/2019 2672 FERNDALE SCHOOL DISTRICT 2019 TAX COLLECTIONS 59,185.64

10/15/2019 2673 LEGACY TITLE 2019 SUMMER TAX OVERPAYMENT 71.48

10/15/2019 2674 OAKLAND COUNTY TREASURER 2019 TAX COLLECTIONS 87,569.91

10/15/2019 2675 VOID CHECK MISPRINT-VOID CHECK 0.00

10/15/2019 2676 VOID CHECK MISPRINT-VOID CHECK 0.00

10/15/2019 2677 VOID CHECK MISPRINT-VOID CHECK 0.00

10/15/2019 2678 VOID CHECK MISPRINT-VOID CHECK 0.00

10/15/2019 2679 VOID CHECK MISPRINT-VOID CHECK 0.00

10/15/2019 2680 VOID CHECK MISPRINT-VOID CHECK 0.00

10/15/2019 2681 VOID CHECK MISPRINT-VOID CHECK 0.00

10/15/2019 2682 VOID CHECK MISPRINT-VOID CHECK 0.00

10/15/2019 2683 VOID CHECK MISPRINT-VOID CHECK 0.00

10/15/2019 2684 VOID CHECK MISPRINT-VOID CHECK 0.00

10/30/2019 2685 CITY OF PLEASANT RIDGE-DDA 2019 TAX COLLECTIONS 2,901.07

10/30/2019 2686 CITY OF PLEASANT RIDGE-TAXES 2019 TAX COLLECTIONS 92,809.93

10/30/2019 2687 FERNDALE SCHOOL DISTRICT 2019 TAX COLLECTIONS 40,291.14

10/30/2019 2688 JONATHAN POSTEMA 2019 SUMMER TAX OVERPAYMENT 1,875.63

10/30/2019 2689 LERETA 2019 SUMMER TAX OVERPAYMENT 1,932.81

10/30/2019 2690 OAKLAND COUNTY TREASURER 2019 TAX COLLECTIONS 63,695.14

TOTAL TAX LIABILITIES 483,772.24$          

                                                  CHECK REGISTER FOR CITY OF PLEASANT RIDGE                                            

TAX LIABILITIES 

October 2019



PG 3

Check Date Check Vendor Name Description Amount

10/15/2019 23297 21ST CENTURY MEDIA-MICHIGAN LEGAL NOTICE PUBLICATION 1,199.75$              

10/15/2019 23298 ADKISON, NEED & ALLEN P.L.L.C. ATTORNEY SERVICES 1,167.25$              

10/15/2019 23299 ALBANA KOKA SHELTER CLEANING 1,000.00$              

10/15/2019 23300 ALL GRAPHICS CORP SYNCHRO SHOW SUPPLIES 131.80$                 

10/15/2019 23301 AMERICAN INTERIORS COMMISSION CHAMBERS RENOVATIONS 18,242.08$            

10/15/2019 23302 ANDERSON, ECKSTEIN & WESTRICK ENGINEERING SERVICES 19,687.59$            

10/15/2019 23303 BADGER METER, INC. WATER METER MAINTENANCE & PURCHASES 1,187.28$              

10/15/2019 23304 BLUE CROSS BLUE SHIELD OF MICHIGAN HEALTH INSURANCE BENEFITS 5,770.70$              

10/15/2019 23305 CAROLE ZUPAN HOME AND GARDEN TOUR AFTERGLOW 105.89$                 

10/15/2019 23306 CHAMBERLIN PONY RIDES HAYRIDE ENTERTAINMENT 600.00$                 

10/15/2019 23307 CITY OF FERNDALE FIRE SERVICES AGREEMENT 21,381.72$            

10/15/2019 23308 CITY OF FERNDALE DISPATCH SERVICES AGREEMENT 3,250.00$              

10/15/2019 23309 COMMUNITY MEDIA NETWORK CITY COMMISSION RECORDING 200.00$                 

10/15/2019 23310 CREGGER COMPANY BUILDING PERMIT OVERPAYMENT 5,000.00$              

10/15/2019 23311 DAVEY TREE EXPERT COMPANY TREE MAINTENANCE SERVICES 21,205.00$            

10/15/2019 23312 DEBORAH GREEN COMMISSION MINUTES 25.00$                   

10/15/2019 23313 DETROIT EDISON COMPANY STREETLIGHTING SERVICES 3,481.58$              

10/15/2019 23314 DIVERSIFIED INFRASTRUCTURE SRVS SEWER CLEANING AND TELEVISING 7,999.65$              

10/15/2019 23315 EUGENE LUMBERG COURT PROSECUTIONS 438.75$                 

10/15/2019 23316 FLAME FURNACE COMMUNITY CENTER REPAIRS 494.41$                 

10/15/2019 23317 G2 CONSULTING GROUP ENGINEERING SERVICES 2,425.00$              

10/15/2019 23318 GREAT AMERICAN FINANCIAL SRVS TELEPHONE LEASE SERVICES 909.30$                 

10/15/2019 23319 GREAT LAKES WATER AUTHORITY IWC CHARGES-AUGUST & SEPTEMBER 520.52$                 

10/15/2019 23320 HARTWELL CEMENT COMPANY CONCRETE PAVEMENT PROGRAM 85,673.05$            

10/15/2019 23321 J & J AUTO TRUCK CENTER POLICE VEHICLE MAINTENANCE 58.08$                   

10/15/2019 23322 JANI-KING OF MICHIGAN, INC JANITORIAL SERVICES 2,161.00$              

10/15/2019 23323 JODI MCGUIRE REFUND OF RECREATION PROGRAM FEES 6.00$                     

10/15/2019 23324 LEGAL SHIELD LEGAL SERVICES BENEFIT 25.90$                   

10/15/2019 23325 M1 BEARS LACROSSE LLC RECREATION PROGRAMS 612.00$                 

10/15/2019 23326 MADISON HEIGHTS LITTLE LEAGUE RECREATION PROGRAMS 174.00$                 

10/15/2019 23327 MAGDY KODSY FINAL PEFORMANCE BOND RETURN 19-227 500.00$                 

10/15/2019 23328 MARXMODA COMMISSION CHAMBERS RENOVATIONS 6,242.50$              

10/15/2019 23329 MELANIE SEVALD RECREATION PROGRAM INSTRUCTOR 448.00$                 

10/15/2019 23330 MICHELLE DELACOURT NEWSLETTER LAYOUT 600.00$                 

10/15/2019 23331 MICHIGAN MUNICIPAL LEAGUE UNEMPLOYMENT CONTRIBUTIONS Q-3 2019 43.60$                   

10/15/2019 23332 O'REILY AUTO PARTS VEHICLE MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES 7.49$                     

10/15/2019 23333 OAKLAND COMMUNITY COLLEGE POLICE TRAINING SERVICES 60.00$                   

10/15/2019 23334 OAKLAND COUNTY TREASURER SEWERAGE TREATMENT-SEPT 2019 49,825.91$            

10/15/2019 23335 OAKLAND SCHOOLS CITY WIDE NOTICE PRINTING AND MAILING 455.54$                 

10/15/2019 23336 PAM KAMPF RECREATION PROGRAM INSTRUCTOR 240.00$                 

10/15/2019 23337 PATRICK THOMPSON DESIGNS, INC COMMISSION CHAMBERS RENOVATIONS 1,394.66$              

10/15/2019 23338 PAUL BARYLSKI HAYRIDE ENTERTAINMENT 300.00$                 

10/15/2019 23339 PLANTE MORAN GROUP BENEFIT ADVISORS BENEFIT CONSULTING SERVICES 1,125.00$              

10/15/2019 23340 ROCKET ENTERPRISE, INC FLAG MAINTENANCE RENEWAL 890.00$                 

10/15/2019 23341 SCHEER'S ACE HARDWARE BUILDING MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES 155.45$                 

10/15/2019 23342 SHAWNIE STAMPER MILEAGE REIMBURSEMENT 229.51$                 

10/15/2019 23343 SHORES TRAILER SALES POLICE DEPARTMENT EQUIPMENT PURCHASES 3,375.00$              

10/15/2019 23344 SOCRRA REFUSE COLLECTION AGREEMENT 9,424.00$              

10/15/2019 23345 SOCWA WATER PURCHASES-SEPT 2019 18,192.77$            

10/15/2019 23346 SOUTHEASTERN OAKLAND COUNTY MEMBERSHIP DUES 40.00$                   

10/15/2019 23347 TOSHIBA FINANCIAL SERVICES COPIER LEASE SERVICES 901.33$                 

10/15/2019 23348 UNIFIRST CORPORATION MAT RENTAL AND JANITORIAL SUPPLIES 167.95$                 

10/15/2019 23349 UNUM LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY LIFE INSURANCE BENEFITS 525.11$                 

10/15/2019 23350 USZTAN CONSTRUCTION COMMUNITY CENTER RENOVATIONS 2,596.33$              

10/15/2019 23351 VICTORIA DICKINSON RECREATION PROGRAM INSTRUCTOR 96.00$                   

10/15/2019 23352 W-S CITY OF PLEASANT RIDGE WATER PURCHASES 2,967.13$              

10/15/2019 23353 WETMORE TIRE AND AUTO POLICE VEHICLE MAINTENANCE 639.00$                 

10/15/2019 23354 XFER COMMUNICATIONS BODYCAMERA WIRING 505.00$                 

Total for 10-15-2019 307,080.58$          

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

October 15, 2019

CITY OF PLEASANT RIDGE CHECK REGISTER



PG 4

Check Date Check Vendor Name Description Amount

10/30/2019 23355 ACCUSHRED, LLC SHREDDING SERVICES 55.00$                   

10/30/2019 23356 AIR-MASTER HEATING & A.C, LLC OVERPAYMENT OF MECHANICAL PERMIT 75.00$                   

10/30/2019 23357 ANDERSON, ECKSTEIN & WESTRICK ENGINEERING SERVICES 6,654.63$              

10/30/2019 23358 BRILAR DPW SERVICES 20,912.90$            

10/30/2019 23359 COMMUNITY MEDIA NETWORK MEETING TAPING 200.00$                 

10/30/2019 23360 DAVEY TREE EXPERT COMPANY TREE MAINTENANCE 3,000.00$              

10/30/2019 23361 DAVID SALAMAS UNIFORM REIMBURESEMENT 244.18$                 

10/30/2019 23362 ICMA RETIREMENT CORPORATION PLAN MAINTENANCE FEE 250.00$                 

10/30/2019 23363 LED SUPPLY CO GAINSBORO PARK RENOVATIONS 26,175.00$            

10/30/2019 23364 MICHIGAN POLICE EQUIPMENT POLICE DEPARTMENT SUPPLIES 1,202.45$              

10/30/2019 23365 NYE UNIFORM DEPARTMENT LOGO SETUP FEE 45.00$                   

10/30/2019 23366 O'REILY AUTO PARTS VEHICLE MAINTENANCE 32.97$                   

10/30/2019 23367 OAKLAND COUNTY ANIMAL CONTROL DOG LICENSES 191.75$                 

10/30/2019 23368 OAKLAND COUNTY TREASURER POLICE DEPARTMENT EQUIPMENT 2,374.50$              

10/30/2019 23369 OPTUM BANK HSA CONTRIBUTIONS-GUZIK 250.00$                 

10/30/2019 23370 PATRICK THOMPSON DESIGNS, INC BUILDING MAINTENANCE 4,000.00$              

10/30/2019 23371 POSTMASTER-PERMITS BULK MAIL PERMIT RENEWAL 235.00$                 

10/30/2019 23372 SOCRRA REFUSE COLLECTION AGREEMENT 8,489.89$              

10/30/2019 23373 TEPEL BROTHER PRINTING NEWSLETTER PRINTING 2,183.00$              

10/30/2019 23374 UNIFIRST CORPORATION MAT RENTAL & JANITORIAL SUPPLIES 230.93$                 

10/30/2019 23375 USZTAN CONSTRUCTION CONSTRUCTION PROJECTS 99,180.38$            

10/30/2019 23376 WEX BANK FUEL PURCHASES 1,352.73$              

Total for 10-30-2019 177,335.31$          

CITY OF PLEASANT RIDGE CHECK REGISTER

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

October 30, 2019



PG 5

Check Date Check Vendor Name Description Amount

10/10/2019 1796 BLUE CROSS BLUE SHIELD OF MICHIGAN HEALTHCARE BENEFITS 13,585.53$            

10/10/2019 1797 BLUE CROSS BLUE SHIELD OF MICHIGAN HEATHCARE BENEFITS 14,317.25$            

10/10/2019 1798 BLUE CROSS BLUE SHIELD OF MICHIGAN HEALTHCARE BENEFITS 13,951.39$            

10/10/2019 1799 MUNICIPAL EMP.RETIREMENT SYST. RETIREMENT BENEFITS 31,221.99$            

10/11/2019 1800 5TH 3RD RECREATION TRANSACTIONS 1,508.93$              

10/11/2019 1801 ADOBE SYSTEMS INC SOFTWARE MAINTENANCE 87.95$                   

10/11/2019 1802 AMAZON.COM POLCE DEPARTMENT SUPPLIES 1,217.94$              

10/11/2019 1803 AMAZON.COM JANITORIAL SUPPLIES 51.62$                   

10/11/2019 1804 AMAZON.COM OFFICE SUPPLIES 26.97$                   

10/11/2019 1805 AMAZON.COM OFFICE SUPPLIES 12.66$                   

10/11/2019 1806 AMAZON.COM HOME AND GARDEN TOUR SUPPLIES 35.92$                   

10/11/2019 1807 AMAZON.COM COMMUNITY CENTER SUPPLIES 218.26$                 

10/11/2019 1808 AMAZON.COM COMM CENTER OFFICE SUPPLIES 6.88$                     

10/11/2019 1809 AMAZON.COM COMMUNITY CENTER JANITORIAL SUPPLIES 50.26$                   

10/11/2019 1810 AMAZON.COM POLICE DEPARTMENT SUPPLIES 61.76$                   

10/11/2019 1811 AMAZON.COM HOME AND GARDEN TOUR SUPPLIES 24.97$                   

10/11/2019 1812 AMAZON.COM DOG PARK SUPPLIES 119.97$                 

10/11/2019 1813 AMAZON.COM FITNESS CENTER SUPPLIES 98.50$                   

10/11/2019 1814 AMAZON.COM COMMUNITY CENTER BLDG MAINTENANCE 27.48$                   

10/11/2019 1815 AMAZON.COM JANITORIAL SUPPLIES 65.99$                   

10/11/2019 1816 AMAZON.COM RECREATION PROGRAM SUPPLIES 163.04$                 

10/11/2019 1817 AT&T MOBILITY WIRELESS SERVICES 394.39$                 

10/11/2019 1818 CHAMBERLIN PONY RIDES HAYRIDE ENTERTAINMENT 50.00$                   

10/11/2019 1819 COMCAST TELECOMMUNICATION SERVICES 636.58$                 

10/11/2019 1820 CONSUMERS ENERGY UTILITIES SERVICES 413.43$                 

10/11/2019 1821 CROWN AWARDS RECREATION PROGRAM SUPPLIES 176.09$                 

10/11/2019 1822 DTE ENERGY UTILITIES SERVICES 3,598.11$              

10/11/2019 1823 ERADICO SERVICES INC EXTERMINATION SERVICES 111.00$                 

10/11/2019 1824 FIDELITY SECURITY  LIFE INS CO HEALTH BENEFITS 577.40$                 

10/11/2019 1825 GODFREY BROTHERS DPW SUPPLIES 176.96$                 

10/11/2019 1826 INTERMEDIA.NET INC. TELEPHONE LEASE AGREEMENT 118.22$                 

10/11/2019 1827 LEXISNEXIS POLICE DEPARTMENT SUPPLIES 150.00$                 

10/11/2019 1828 MAILCHIMP SOFTWARE MAINTENANCE 60.00$                   

10/11/2019 1829 MEADOWBROOK HALL RECREATION PROGRAM 50.00$                   

10/11/2019 1830 MICRO CENTER OFFICE SUPPLIES 139.80$                 

10/11/2019 1831 MSFT SOFTWARE MAINTENANCE 376.64$                 

10/11/2019 1832 PLANETIZEN.COM TUITION FEES-BREUCKMAN 24.95$                   

10/11/2019 1833 PLASTICPLACE.COM PARK MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES 52.49$                   

10/11/2019 1834 QUILL CORPORATION OFFICE SUPPLIES 708.55$                 

10/11/2019 1835 RENT A BOUNCE RECREATION PROGRAM 500.00$                 

10/11/2019 1836 SAMS CLUB OFFICE, MEETING AND JANITORIAL SUPPLIES 371.21$                 

10/11/2019 1837 SIGNS ON THE CHEAP HOME AND GARDEN TOUR SUPPLIES 243.83$                 

10/11/2019 1838 STAMPS.COM POSTAGE SERVICES 217.99$                 

10/11/2019 1839 TRESHNA ENTERPRISES/GYMMASTER SOFTWARE MAINTENANCE 185.00$                 

10/11/2019 1840 WEX BANK FUEL PURCHASES 15.00$                   

10/11/2019 1841 WOW! BUSINESS TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES 303.90$                 

10/11/2019 1842 XFER COMMUNICATIONS COMPUTER SUPPORT AND BACKUP SERVICES 1,289.00$              

10/30/2019 1843 MUNICIPAL EMP.RETIREMENT SYST. RETIREMENT CONTRIBUTIONS 31,240.40$            

Total  Electronic Payments 119,036.20$          

Electronic Payments

CITY OF PLEASANT RIDGE CHECK REGISTER

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE



City of Pleasant Ridge 
James Breuckman, City Manager 

From: Jim Breuckman, City Manager 

To: City Commission 

Date: November 7, 2019 

Re: Zoning and City Code of Ordinances Amendment: 

Air Conditioner Compressor and Outdoor Generator Location and Noise Standards 

Overview 
A recurring issue that staff has dealt with is the lack of detailed standards for air conditioner compressor 

units and permanent generators in the Zoning Ordinance. This lack of standards leads to occasional 

neighbor disputes over location and noise. The attached ordinance would establish clear and 

administratively enforceable location and noise level limits and would build in a neighbor consultation 

process. 

Background 
Currently the City considers air conditioner compressors and permanent generators (hereafter referred to 

as “units”) to be accessory structures for the purposes of ordinance compliance. This is not explicitly 

specified in the ordinance, but rather has been an administrative determination. The ordinance also does 

not have specific noise standards for such units, only general nuisance standards. This results in the City 

having to determine what is an appropriate noise level on a case by case basis, which is not an easy 

administrative task. 

The proposed ordinance includes two components: 

1. An amendment that requires all air conditioner compressor units and outdoor generators to be in

the rear yard unless approval is granted by the adjacent neighbor for the unit to be in a side yard.

This will require a notarized letter signed by the neighbor. The amendment also includes

requirements for screening and establishes that units may not be located closer than 2 feet to a

side property line if permission is granted.

2. The addition of specific noise standards to Section 34-52, Nuisances of the City Code of

Ordinances. The amendment establishes 60 dBA as the sound limit for air conditioner compressors

as measured 6 feet above grade at a property line. Power generators are not subject to the noise

standards due to their different operating characteristics.

The ordinance is modeled after similar ordinances in Huntington Woods and Farmington which require 

neighbor permission to locate units in a side yard. The noise standards were based on a survey of other 

Item 16



Air Conditioner Compressor & Permanent Generator Location and Sound Ordinance Amendment 

November 7, 2019 - Page 2 of 2 

 

community’s noise standards. Most cities have a noise limit of 55 or 60 dBA at a property line in residential 

districts. 

Process 
This is a Zoning Ordinance amendment which requires a public hearing before the Planning Commission, 

which was held on October 28. The Planning Commission then recommended that the City Commission 

approve the ordinance. The City Commission holds a public hearing and then makes the final decision on 

the proposed amendment. 

 

Requested Action 
City Commission action to schedule a public hearing on December 10, 2019 for the proposed ordinance 

amendment. 

 

 

 

 

 



CITY OF PLEASANT RIDGE 

Ordinance No ___ 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE CITY OF PLEASANT RIDGE CODE

 OF ORDINANCES, CHAPTER 82 – ZONING and CHAPTER 34 - ENVIRONMENT. 
 

THE CITY OF PLEASANT RIDGE ORDAINS: 
 

Section 1. 

 

The following sections of Chapter 82, Zoning, of the Pleasant Ridge City Code are amended as 

follows: 

 

Section 82-193 of the Pleasant Ridge Zoning Ordinance is amended to add a new subsection (9) 

as follows: 

 

(9) Air Conditioners and Power Generators. Refrigeration or cooling equipment (used for 

central air conditioning purposes) or power generators (used as a source of interim 

power) installed outside of a dwelling or main building shall be:  

 

a. Screened from view from a public right of way with approved fencing or 

landscaping. 

 

b. Located in the rear yard of the dwelling or main building, and no closer to the side 

property line than the principal structure. The City Manager may authorize 

installation in a side yard behind the front building line if site conditions make it 

impossible to install in a rear yard, or upon the receipt of notarized written approval 

of such installation from the owner of the adjacent neighboring property. If a side 

yard installation is allowed under this section, air conditioner compressors or 

generator units shall be set back at least two (2) feet from any property line. 

 

c. In compliance with sound emission standards as set forth in Section 34-52(14). 

 

d. In the case of corner lots, the City Manager may authorize installation toward the 

side lot line adjacent to the street in instances where site conditions make it 

impossible to install in a rear yard. 

 

Section 2. 

 

Section 34-52 of the Pleasant Ridge City Code is amended to add a new subsection (14) as 

follows: 

 

(14) The operation of mechanical equipment, including but not limited to air conditioning, air 

handling devices, refrigeration devices or other condensers causing a continuous sound 

level more than 60 dBA measured 6 feet above grade at any property line in residential 

areas. This subsection shall not apply if the sound from the equipment creates less than a 

three dBA increase in the sound level that exists in the absence of such sound. 

 



Section 2. Severability. 
 

Should any provision or part of this Article be declared by any court of competent 

jurisdiction to be invalid or unenforceable, the same shall not affect the validity or enforceability 

of the balance of this Article, which shall remain in full force and effect. 
 

Section 3. Repealer. 
 

All other ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with this ordinance are hereby 

repealed only to the extent necessary to give this Ordinance full force and effect. 
 

Section 4. Savings clause. 
 

Nothing in this Article shall be construed to affect any suit or proceeding pending in any 

court or any rights acquired or any liability incurred, or any cause or causes of action acquired or 

existing, under any act or ordinance hereby repealed as cited in Section 8 of this Ordinance; nor 

shall any just or legal right or remedy of any character be lost, impaired, or affected by this 

Ordinance. 
 

Section 5. Effective Date. 
 

This Ordinance shall become effective seven days after publication of a notice of 

adoption, as provided by law. 
 

Section 6. Adoption. 
 

This Ordinance is hereby declared to have been adopted by the Commission of the City 

of  Pleasant  Ridge  at  a  meeting  duly  called  and  held  on  the  ___ day of ______, 2019, and 

ordered to be given publication in the manner prescribed by law. 
 

 

 

 
 

 

Amy M. Drealan, City Clerk 
 

 
Planning Commission Public Hearing: ................ October 28, 2019 

Planning Commission Recommendation: ............ October 28, 2019 

City Commission Introduction: ............................ November 12, 2019 

City Commission Public Hearing: 

City Commission Adoption: 

Published: 

Effective:  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 


	2019.11.12 - CC Agenda
	2019.11.12 - CC WC
	Item 5 - Whistle Stop
	2019.11.06 Whistle Stop Liquor License Agenda Summary
	2019.10.15 - Operating Agreement Amendment
	2015.09.09 - Existing Whistle Stop Operating Agreement
	2019.10.22 - T. Rubino
	2019.10.23 - Branigan
	2019.10.28 - Cavazos
	2019.10.29 - Baker
	2019.11.05 - Sanitate
	Blank Page

	Item 6 - PH 71 Devonshire Condemn
	2019.11.12 - Memo for agenda item - 71 Devonshire Condemn
	2019.10.15 City Commission
	2019.10.16 - Posting for house
	2019.10.16 - 71 Devonshire Notice of PH letter
	2019.10.31 - Notice of PH to public

	Item 7 - 2020 CDBG application memo
	Item 8 - Oak Wilt Ordinance
	2019.11.06 Oak Wilt Tree Trimming Ordinance Agenda Summary
	2019.10.09 - Ord ___ Oak Wilt

	Item 10-12 - Election Report
	Item 14a - CC Mtg Minutes
	Item 14b - Disbursements
	Item 15 - PH intro AC units
	2019.11.07 - Air Conditioner Ordinance Amendment Agenda Summary
	2019.11.07 - Ord ___ Air Conditioners and Power Generators




